Case 4:09-cr-00699 .Document 1 Filed in TXSD on 12/17/09 Page 1 Gfiysutes courts

f‘%fh . ; Southern ?:llslt_lgtg of Texas
UN&EALEﬂ T el s DEC 1 7 2009
Y ue 3 ek i i o dar
EF W - URT Clerk of Court J
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
HOUSTON TEXAS
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA § - -
§ H-09- 699
V. § CRIMINAL NO. H-09-
5 _ —
ALVIN MARK EILAND, § UNDER SEAL
GARY LEONARD ROBINSON 11, and §
MING SHAN ZHU §
INDICTMENT
COUNT ONE

(Conspiracy - Title 18, U.S.C. §1349)
At all times material to this Indictment:
A. Defendants
1. ALVIN MARK EILAND, GARY LEONARD ROBINSON II, and MING
SHAN ZHU operated in the Houston, Texas area under various business names. ALVIN
MARK EILAND used the name Future Mortgage Company, Inc. (FMC). GARY
LEONARD ROBINSON II used the business names Superb Construction LLC and
J.D.R. Construction. MING SHAN ZHU used the business name Catco Homes.

B. Residential Real Estate Closings

2. The Transaction that is the subject of a residential real estate closing
(“Closing”) involves the purchase and sale of real property between two parties, the
“Buyer” and the “Seller”. The Buyer is an individual or entity who, in a “Cash

Transaction,” provides his own funds to pay 100% of the sales price, or, in a “Loan
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Transaction,” obtains the funding from a lending institution (the “Lender™), to purchase
the real estate, which has approved the Buyer/Borrower (hereinafter “Borrower”) for a
residential mortgage loan for up to 100% of the sales price. The Seller is an individual or
entity who owns the property that is the subject of the transaction.

3. The documents used to apply for a real estate mortgage loan are usually
collected by loan officers and loan processors and transmitted to the Lender by United
States mail and/or by commercial interstate carrier such as Federal Express and DHL
Worldwide Express and/or via facsimile. These documents include, but are not limited
to:

a. The Residential Uniform Loan Application executed by the Borrower
b. Borrower’s credit report

¢. Verification of Employment

d. Verification of Rent or Mortgage

e. Lease agreements

4. The closing of the real estate transaction is conducted by a Title Company
Escrow Agent or Closing Agent. The Title Company transmits documents prepared for
the property closing to the Lender by facsimile as well as by United States mail and/or by
commercial interstate carrier such as Federal Express. The Lender funds the residential
loans through a wire transfer from the Lender’s bank to the Title Company’s bank

account. After the loans are funded, the Title Company disburses the loan proceeds.

C. The Conspiracy

5. From in or about August 2004 and continuing through on or about October
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30, 2006, in the Southern District of Texas, and elsewhere, the defendants,
ALVIN MARK EILAND,
GARY LEONARD ROBINSON II, and
MING SHAN ZHU,
did knowingly conspire and agree with at least one other person to commit the following
offenses against the United States:
a. To knowingly devise and intend to devise a scheme and artifice to
defraud, and for obtaining money and property by means of false and
fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, and to knowingly use
and cause to be used the United States mails and private and commercial
interstate carriers for the purpose of executing the scheme and artifice to
defraud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341;
b. To knowingly devise and intend to devise a scheme and artifice to
defraud, and for obtaining money and property by means of false and
fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, and to knowingly use
and cause to be used interstate wire communications facilities in carrying
out the scheme to defraud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Section 1343;

D. Manner and Means of the Scheme

It was a part of the conspiracy that:
7. ALVIN MARK EILAND and GARY LEONARD ROBINSON II and their

coconspirators and agents would and did locate real estate (the “Properties”) in the
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Houston, Texas area, frequently Properties for sale by developers such as MING SHAN
ZHU .

8. ALVIN MARK EILAND and GARY LEONARD ROBINSON II and their
coconspirators and agents would and did recruit, solicit, compensate and cause to be
compensated individuals with good credit to act as “Borrowers” in applications for
residential mortgage loans to purchase one or more of the Properties.

9. ALVIN MARK EILAND and GARY LEONARD ROBINSON II and their
coconspirators and agents knew and intended that each Borrower would and did use and
allow his or her name and other personal and financial information to be used and
submitted to a “Lender” for the purpose of pretending and falsely representing that the
Borrower was able to meet the financial obligations of the loan and had the incentive to
do so.

10.  ALVIN MARK EILAND and GARY LEONARD ROBINSON II and their
coconspirators and agents would and did cause to be completed Uniform Residential
Loan Applications in the names of the Borrowers in an attempt to obtain financing of the
Property’s sales price. The applications included false representations including the
Borrower’s plan to occupy the Property as their primary residence, a pretense and false
representation that ALVIN MARK EILAND and GARY LEONARD ROBINSON II and

their coconspirators knew was material to the Lenders’ decisions to grant and fund the

loans.
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11. ALVIN MARK EILAND and GARY LEONARD ROBINSON II, and their
coconspirators and agents would and did prepare, authorize, disseminate, transmit and
cause to be prepared, authorized, disseminated and transmitted through the United States
mail and commercial interstate carriers and through interstate wire communications, to
individuals and entities, including Lenders and their agents, false and fraudulent
statements and other information, including but not limited to the ability and incentive of
each Borrower to repay the loan, which the Defendants and their coconspirators knew and
had reason to believe would be material to the Lender’s decision to fund the mortgage
loan and under what conditions.

12, ALVIN MARK EILAND, GARY LEONARD ROBINSON II and MING
SHAN ZHU would and did cause the title company handling the closing of the residential
real estate transaction to disburse fraudulently-induced loan proceeds from the escrow
accounts of the title companies to various individuals and entities.

13. ALVIN MARK EILAND and GARY LEONARD ROBINSON II would
and did cause bank accounts to be opened in the Houston, Texas area under various
nominee business names, including Superb Construction LLC and J.D.R. Construction for
purposes including the deposit and transfer of proceeds of fraudulently-induced loans and
to pay individuals who provided services necessary to promote and perpetuate the
scheme.

14. MING SHAN ZHU and other coconspirators would inflate the sales price of
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properties to allow ALVIN MARK EILAND and GARY LEONARD ROBINSON II to
receive funds intended for construction and improvement expenses which were never
performed or completed.

15.  ALVIN MARK EILAND, GARY LEONARD ROBINSON II and MING
SHAN ZHU and other coconspirators would and did induce Lenders to fund fraudulently
obtained residential mortgage loans in the total amount of $7,151,500.00.

OVERT ACTS

In furtherance of the conspiracy described in Count One and to effect the objects
thereof, the defendants named therein and other persons both known and unknown to the
grand jury, performed or caused the performance of one or more of the following Overt
Acts, among others not described herein, in the Southern District of Texas and elsewhere
on or about the following dates:

(1) October 1, 2004, ALVIN MARK EILAND and GARY LEONARD ROBINSON
IT caused Articles of Organization for Superb Construction LLC to be filed in the records
of the Texas Secretary of State.

(2)  October 4, 2004, ALVIN MARK EILAND and GARY LEONARD ROBINSON
IT caused a checking account in the name of Superb Construction LLC to be opened at
Bank of America.

(3)  February 22, 2005, ALVIN MARK EILAND and GARY LEONARD ROBINSON
II caused a checking account in the name of J.D.R. Construction to be opened at Bank of
America.

(4)  February 22, 2005, ALVIN MARK EILAND and GARY LEONARD
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